

Voting Members Present:

Cr P Masselos Mr R Autar S/Cst A Birchansky	Waverley Council – Chair Transport for NSW – Traffic Engineering Officer NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services
Mr M Kennedy	Representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee
Ms J Zin	Representing Gabrielle Upton, MP, Member for Vaucluse
Also Present:	
Mr B Gidiess	State Transit – Traffic and Services Manager (Eastern Region)
Cr T Kay	Waverley Council – Alternate Chair
Mr C Hutcheson	Waverley Council – Service Manager, Traffic and Transport
M Almuhanna	Waverley Council – Senior Traffic Engineer

At the commencement of proceedings at 10.00 am, those present were as listed above.

At 11.14 am, Mr M Kennedy left the meeting and did not return.

Apologies

Apologies were received and accepted from Mr P Pearce (representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee).

Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

The Chair called for declarations of interest and none were received.

Adoption of Previous Minutes by Council - 22 April 2021

The recommendations contained in Part 1 – Matters Proposing that Council Exercise its Delegated Functions – of the minutes of the Waverley Traffic Committee Meeting held on 22 April 2021 were adopted by Council at its meeting on 25 May 2021 with the following changes:

 TC/V.03/21.04 – 31 Hall Street, Bondi Beach – Relocation of '1/4 P' Zone from Jacques Street to Hall Street.

Council adopted the recommendation of the Traffic Committee subject to it being amended to read as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9.5 metre restricted parking zone in Hall Street immediately to the north-west of the motor bike zone fronting 27 Hall Street with the following restrictions:
 - (a) Mail Zone 6 am–5 pm, 3P Meter Registration 5 pm–9 pm, Monday–Friday, with the mail zone to be monitored by Council officers and Australia Post be requested to provide a more limited time.
 - (b) 1P Meter Registration 8 am–6 pm, 3P 6 pm–9 pm, Saturday–Sunday.
- 2. Installs 12 metres of '2P 8 am–6 pm Meter Registration Permit Holders Excepted Area 8' parking in Jaques Avenue outside 20–24 Hall Street, Bondi Beach.
- 3. Removes 'No Parking' signposted restrictions currently across the driveway to the old Australia Post office in Jaques Avenue.
- 2. TC/V.07/21.04 27 Beaumont Street, Rose Bay 'P Disability Only' Zone.

Council did not adopt the recommendation of the Traffic Committee and made the following decision:

That:

- 1. This item be deferred for urgent clarification to seek advice to determine if the 'P Disability Only' zone would benefit from being moved and where to, and if there are any further impacts.
- 2. A report come back to the June Council meeting.

ITEMS BY EXCEPTION

The following items on the agenda were dealt with together and the Council Officer's Proposal for each item was unanimously supported by the Committee:

- TC/C.04/21.05 Queens Park Road, Queens Park Bus Zone Modifications.
- TC/C.05/21.05 7 Brae Street, Bronte 'P Disability Only' Zone Review.
- TC/C.06/21.05 Mason Lane, Bondi 'No Parking' Zones.

- TC/C.07/21.05 Albert Street and St Thomas Street Intersection, Bronte 'No Stopping' Zones.
- TC/C.08/21.05 Turner Street, Bronte 'No Stopping' Zone Removal.
- TC/C.09/21.05 Brown Street and Palmerston Avenue Intersection, Bronte 'No Stopping' Zone -Review.
- TC/C.10/21.05 191 Birrell Street, Waverley 'No Stopping' Zone.
- TC/C.11/21.05 278-282 Birrell Street, Bondi Construction Zone.
- TC/C.12/21.05 13 Calga Avenue, Bronte Construction Zone.
- TC/C.13/21.05 55 Hewlett Street, Bronte Construction Zone.
- TC/V.02/21.05 43-45 Hall Street, Bondi Beach Partial Road Closure for Tower Crane Installation.
- TC/V.04/21.05 Ethel Street and Kimberley Street Intersection, Vaucluse 'No Stopping' Zones.
- TC/V.05/21.05 Diamond Bay Road and Isabel Avenue Intersection, Vaucluse 'No Stopping' Zone -Review.
- TC/V.06/21.05 Warners Avenue, Bondi Beach 15 Minute Parking.
- TC/V.07/21.05 55 Murriverie Road North Bondi 'P Disability Only' Zone.
- TC/V.08/21.05 68 Blair Street, North Bondi 'P Disability Only' Zone Removal.
- TC/V.09/21.05 114 Warners Avenue, Bondi Beach Construction Zone.

PART 1 – MATTERS PROPOSING THAT COUNCIL EXERCISE ITS DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda propose that Council either does or does not exercise the traffic related functions delegated to it by TfNSW. The recommendations made by the Committee under this part of the agenda will be submitted to Council for adoption.

TC/C STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

TC/C.01/21.05 40 km/h Speed Limit Changes - Traffic Control Devices - Park Parade and Dickson Street at Birrell Street, Bondi (A18/0579)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

- 1. Installs a centre line marking with kerb extensions at the intersection of Park Parade and Birrell Street, Bondi, as shown in Figure 9 of the report.
- 2. Installs a pedestrian refuge island with kerb extensions at the intersection of Dickson Street and Birrell Street, Bondi, as shown in Figure 10 of the report.

- 3. Installs 'Do not queue across intersection' signs at the intersections of Birrell Street with Park Parade and Dickson Street.
- 4. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of new clauses such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a centre line marking with kerb extensions at the intersection of Park Parade and Birrell Street, Bondi, as shown in Figure 9 of the report.
- 2. Installs a pedestrian refuge island with kerb extensions at the intersection of Dickson Street and Birrell Street, Bondi, as shown in Figure 10 of the report.
- 3. Installs 'Do not queue across intersection' signs at the intersections of Birrell Street with Park Parade and Dickson Street.
- 4. Installs a no right turn, 7.30 am to 9.30 am, from Park Parade into Birrell Street for a trial of 12 months.
- 5. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.
- 6. Investigates the installation of a no right turn, 7.30 am to 9.30 am, from Dickson Street into Birrell Street, and officers report back to the next Traffic Committee meeting.
- 7. Undertakes a local area traffic study to develop a more comprehensive long-term solution to traffic issues at this location.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.02/21.05 Boonara Avenue, Bondi - Right Turn Ban into Bondi Road (A21/0178)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

- 1. Does not support banning the right turn from Boonara Avenue into Bondi Road, Bondi.
- 2. Does not support the alternative option of banning the right turn from Boonara Avenue plus the through movement from Boonara Avenue to Castlefield Street.
- 3. Does not support alternative options of banning the right turn out of Boonara Avenue plus Imperial Avenue.

4. Advises residents who were surveyed of the decision.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That:

- 1. The Council Officer's Proposal not be adopted.
- 2. Council supports banning the right turn from Boonara Avenue and Imperial Avenue into Bondi Road, Bondi.
- 3. Council refers the banning of right turns to Transport for NSW (TfNSW) for investigation and action, requesting that TfSNW considers the ban for a trial period of 12 months.
- 4. Council advises residents who were surveyed of the decision.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

B Everingham addressed the meeting.

TC/C.03/21.05 York Road and Darley Road Intersection, Queens Park - Slip Lane Closure (A21/0105)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Supports the removal of the left turn slip lane from Darley Road eastbound into York Road northbound, Queens Park, subject to Transport for NSW (TfNSW) approval.
- 2. Refers the concept plan attached to the report (Attachment 1) to TfNSW for assessment.
- 3. Advises Randwick Council of the proposal.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to amendments to clauses 2 and 3 such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

- 1. Supports the removal of the left turn slip lane from Darley Road eastbound into York Road northbound, Queens Park, subject to Transport for NSW (TfNSW) approval.
- 2. Refers the concept plan attached to the report (Attachment 1) to TfNSW for assessment, requesting that TfNSW considers:
 - (a) Buses turning left from Darley Road into York Road, noting that approximately 40–50 buses turn left from Darley Road into York Road between 7 am and 9 am on weekdays.
 - (b) Modifications to traffic light phasing.

3. Refers the concept plan and traffic analysis to Randwick Council for its consideration and approval.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.04/21.05 Queens Park Road, Queens Park - Bus Zone Modifications (SF21/1704)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Removes the existing bus zone, tombstone (bus stop sign) and tactile ground surface indicators.
- 2. Installs a 18.5 metre bus zone east of the existing 'No Stopping' restriction.
- 3. Installs a J-stem pole, tombstone and tactile ground surface indicators 12.5 metres east of the existing 'No Stopping' restriction.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.05/21.05 7 Brae Street, Bronte - 'P Disability Only' Zone - Review (A20/0534)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council reduces the length of the existing 'P Disability Only' parking zone in front of 7 Brae Street, Bronte, by 7 metres from 13 metres to 6 metres.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.06/21.05 Mason Lane, Bondi - 'No Parking' Zones (SF21/1703)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs:

1. A 23 metre 'No Parking' zone on the northern side of Mason Lane (east), Bondi.

2. A 20 metre 'No Parking' zone on the northern side of Mason Lane (west), Bondi.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.07/21.05 Albert Street and St Thomas Street Intersection, Bronte - 'No Stopping' Zones (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 'No Stopping' zone at the intersection of St Thomas Street and Albert Street for:
 - (a) 8 metres on the western side of St Thomas Street, north of Albert Street.
 - (b) 8 metres on the northern side of Albert Street, west of St Thomas Street.
- 2. Installs unbroken yellow C3 lines along the 'No Stopping' zone.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.08/21.05 Turner Street, Bronte - 'No Stopping' Zone - Removal (A02/0637)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council removes the 7 metre 'No Stopping' zone at the access to 24 Darling Street in Turner Street, Bronte.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.09/21.05 Brown Street and Palmerston Avenue Intersection, Bronte - 'No Stopping' Zone -Review (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council reduces the length of the 'No Stopping' restrictions on the south-east corner of the intersection of Brown Street and Palmerston Avenue, Bronte, to 10 metres.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.10/21.05 191 Birrell Street, Waverley - 'No Stopping' Zone (SF21/1701)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 10 metre 'No Stopping' zone on the eastern side of Langlee Avenue adjacent to 191 Birrell Street, Waverley.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.11/21.05 278-282 Birrell Street, Bondi - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 30 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 278–282 Birrell Street, Bondi.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.12/21.05 13 Calga Avenue, Bronte - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 15 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 13 Calga Avenue, Bronte.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.13/21.05 55 Hewlett Street, Bronte - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 55 Hewlett Street, Bronte.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

TC/V.01/21.05 Bondi Festival Ferris Wheel and Ice Rink - Special Event (A20/0172)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

1. Approves the temporary traffic and parking changes for the Bondi Festival at Queen Elizabeth Drive and Park Drive South, Bondi Beach, as outlined in the Traffic Control Plans shown in Figures 2 and Figure 3 of the report, subject to the event organisers:

- (a) Obtaining NSW Police approval.
- (b) Notifying the State Transit Authority, NSW Ambulance Service and NSW Fire and Rescue (Bondi, Woollahra and Randwick fire stations) seven days prior to the event.
- (c) Notifying local residents and businesses seven days prior to the event.
- (d) Considering all other impacts on the surrounding environment.
- 2. Issues a schedule of conditions, with any additional conditions to be imposed by NSW Police and Transport for NSW.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the Traffic Control Plans should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.02/21.05 43-45 Hall Street, Bondi Beach - Partial Road Closure for Tower Crane Installation (A02/0617-07)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the temporary partial closure of Hall Street, Bondi Beach, between Consett Avenue and Jaques Avenue, from 6.00 am to 6.00 pm on Monday, 28 June 2021, subject to the applicant:
 - (a) Obtaining approval from NSW Police.
 - (b) Notifying the State Transit Authority, NSW Ambulance Service and NSW Fire and Rescue.
 - (c) Notifying affected residents and businesses of the changes in traffic in writing prior to implementation of the road and footpath closure.
 - (d) Using traffic controllers accredited by Transport for NSW.
 - (e) Covering all costs associated with closing the road, including traffic control and permit fees.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services to adjust the length and duration of the partial road closure, or approve any backup date and times, if required.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.03/21.05 Murriverie Road, North Bondi - Bus Stop Improvements (A20/0076)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Approves the location and time restrictions for bus stops and bus zones as set out in the report at the following locations in Murriverie Road, North Bondi
 - (a) Intersection of Murriverie Road and Shaw Street.
 - (b) Intersection of Old South Head Road and Murriverie Road.
 - (c) Adjacent to Justus Street.
 - (d) Opposite Justus Street.
 - (e) Adjacent to Nancy Street.
 - (f) Opposite Nancy Street.
 - (g) Adjacent to Hardy Street.
- 2. Notifies the residents of Murriverie Road between Old South Head Road and Midelton Avenue of the changes to parking arrangements.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of a new clause 3 such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

- 1. Approves the location and time restrictions for bus stops and bus zones as set out in the report at the following locations in Murriverie Road, North Bondi
 - (a) Intersection of Murriverie Road and Shaw Street.
 - (b) Intersection of Old South Head Road and Murriverie Road.
 - (c) Adjacent to Justus Street.
 - (d) Opposite Justus Street.
 - (e) Adjacent to Nancy Street.
 - (f) Opposite Nancy Street.
 - (g) Adjacent to Hardy Street.
- 2. Notifies the residents of Murriverie Road between Old South Head Road and Midelton Avenue of the changes to parking arrangements.

3. Officers investigate simplifying the signage wording.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.04/21.05 Ethel Street and Kimberley Street Intersection, Vaucluse - 'No Stopping' Zones (SF21/1707)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs 10 metre 'No Stopping' zones on the south-eastern and south-western corners of the intersection of Ethel Street and Kimberley Street, Vaucluse.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.05/21.05 Diamond Bay Road and Isabel Avenue Intersection, Vaucluse - 'No Stopping' Zone - Review (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council reduces the length of the 'No Stopping' zone on the inner bend of the connection of Diamond Bay Road to Isabel Avenue, Vaucluse, from 26 metres to 19 metres, as shown in Figure 2 of the report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.06/21.05 Warners Avenue, Bondi Beach - 15 Minute Parking (A03/0042-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council converts the existing 14 metres of '2P, 8 am–10 pm, Permit Holders Excepted, Area B' parking restriction on the southern kerb line of Warners Avenue east of Glenayr Avenue, Bondi Beach, to 'P 15 mins, 8 am–2 pm' and '2P 2 pm–10 pm, Permit Holders Excepted, Area B', as shown in Figure 1 of the report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.07/21.05 55 Murriverie Road North Bondi - 'P Disability Only' Zone (A20/0534)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 5.4 metre 'P Disability Only' parking zone outside 53 Murriverie Road, North Bondi.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.08/21.05 68 Blair Street, North Bondi - 'P Disability Only' Zone - Removal (A20/0534)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council removes the 6 metre 'P Disability Only' parking zone outside 68 Blair Street, North Bondi.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.09/21.05 114 Warners Avenue, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 10 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Saturday Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the frontage of 114 Warners Avenue, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/CV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

TC/CV.01/21.05 Guide for Assessment of Motor Bike Parking between Driveways (A21/0065)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Endorses the process in the report for the assessment of motor bike parking zones between driveways.
- 2. Endorses the customised single sign 'Motor Bikes Only Between Driveways' for motor bike parking between driveways for a 12-month trial.
- 3. Endorses the 'Motor Bike Parking Warrants' attached to the report.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of a new clause 4 such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Endorses the process in the report for the assessment of motor bike parking zones between driveways.
- 2. Endorses the customised single sign 'Motor Bikes Only Between Driveways' for motor bike parking between driveways for a 12-month trial.
- 3. Endorses the 'Motor Bike Parking Warrants' attached to the report.
- 4. Further consults Transport for NSW regarding line marking and signage.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

The representative of the Member for Coogee was not present for the vote on this item.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 11.25 AM.

SIGNED AND CONFIRMED MAYOR 22 JUNE 2021